P§3E\C5{?Fder
prings
I\

™

Powder Springs, Georgia

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2009



COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

FINANCE DIRECTOR
Beverly Waldrip



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK




CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page(s)
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Letter of Transmittal..........cccooviiiiiiiir s i-iv
GFOA Certificate of AChIEVEMENT.........oiiriiiiiiece s v
Organizational CRATT .........cooiiiiieie et be s esa e vi
City Officials and Administrative Personmel...........ccocvovriiiiiinnincnnnienee e vii
FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent AUditor’s REPOTT ......cccecuiririiiniiiiie e 1,2
Management’s Discussion and ANalysis ........ccccocriniicnininene e 3-13
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
Government-wide Financial Statements:
Statement 0f Net ASSELS.....cccciriiereririie e 14
Statement 0f ACIVILIES .....oeereiieiiiiiiieic e 15
Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds............c.occoovvinininn, 16
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds...............ccceoveniennene 17
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the
Statement 0f ACHIVILIES ....ceoviiriiniiireinere e 18
Balance Sheet - Proprietary Funds...........coocoovviiiieiiiini s 19, 20
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes
in Fund Equity - Proprietary Funds .........cccccoooiiiiiniiniiciin, 21
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds .........ccccoceeiiinienininnen 22,23

Notes to Financial Statements ........c...oovvviveerieeoireeecie e e e e e 24 -39



CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT (CONT’D)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

TABLE OF CONTENTS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
Schedule of Funding Progress .......ocovviiiiiiiiiiieeceeccc e 40

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

General FUnd ........ooooiiiii s 41
Notes to Required Supplementary Information .........c..coeerveiinincinnncnens 42
STATISTICAL SECTION
Statistical Section COMIENTS ........cciiiiiiiiiiiiie e e 43
Net Assets by Category
Last SIX FISCAL YRS ....vevuiiurenriieiie ittt ettt s e s 44

Changes in Net Assets
Last SiX FISCAL YEAIS ...ccoiviiiiiiiiietieeieee ettt eertnr e e e eeetarae e e e s e e e s enbanrsreeeeeeeasannes 45-47

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
Last Ten FiSCal YRAIS ..ooiiiiiieiiie ettt ettt ettt e e e s e e e atr e ereraeeeeeenenaes 48

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
Last Ten FiSCAl YEAIS ....uiiiiiiieiieiii ettt 49

Tax Revenue by Source, Governmental Funds
Last Ten FISCAl YEAI'S .....coiuiriiirieiiciiinieiiet ettt 50

Taxable Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Property
Last Ten FISCAl YEAIS ....coiiuiiiieiiiiti ittt et enens 51

Direct and Underlying Property Tax Rates

Last Ten FiSCAl YEAIS ..ccuviiiiiiiiiiieiiee it ettt et estae st e e et eestaaeste e eaaesbe s eraeesrbeeensneeans 52
Principal Property Taxpayers

Current Year and NiNe YEars A0 ....c.ccooioiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiecicece e 53
Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten FISCAl YEAIS .....ccviiiiiiieiee i eeie et ere e re st sae b e st e saae et e e steeesreaesnreesraeeennes 54
Water and Sewer Rates

Last Ten FISCAI YEAIS ....ciuviicriiiiiii s ittt ettt e st see et srae st setee e staeennaeesneeesenes 55

Water Consumed
Last Ten FISCAl YRAIS .oviiiiiiiiiiiiitiiiii ettt et e e et a et e e e e e e eaaans 56



CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT (CONT’D)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

TABLE OF CONTENTS

STATISTICAL SECTION (Continued)

Water Sold By Type of Customer

Last Eight FiScal YEars.......coccoviiiniiiieieeee et 57
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten FISCAl YEAIS .....ocereeririieriiiciictieeie sttt st sttt s 58
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt.........cc.ccconiiiniiincinnienne, 59

Legal Debt Margin Information
LaSt TeN FISCAL Y ATS ...vvvvieiiceiiie ettt e a e e 60

Pledged-Revenue Coverage
Last Ten FiSCal YEAIS ....ecueieiiiriieiee ittt sttt sb e et ene e 61

Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten FiSCAL YEAI'S ......eeiuiiteiriieiiierii ettt ettt ettt sttt s 62

Principal Employers
Current Year and Ten Years A0 ..ovvevcieiriierieeiirinieeireeiiresneesineesieessrneesnnesenenaessenesnnnes 63

Employees by Function/Program
Last Ten FiSCAl YEAIS .....ocueiiriiiiieiiiieticiieette ettt st 64

Operating Indicators by Function/Program
Last Ten FiSCal YEAIS ....ccceviiiiriiieiie ettt s e 65

Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program
Last Ten FiSCal YEAIS ....ccceviiuiiieieniiciineresteeie ettt s 66

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of

Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with

Government Auditing StanAards ............cocoecviionniiiiiiiteie e 67, 68



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK




Powder
prings
I\

‘;,\

INTRODUCTORY SECTION



December 28, 2009

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
And the Citizens of the City of Powder Springs, Georgia

State law requires that every general-purpose local government publish within six
months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of audited financial statements.
This report is published to fulfill that requirement for the fiscal year ended June 30,
20009.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the
information contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal
control that is established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should
not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather that
absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material
misstatements.

Moore & Cubbedge, LLP, Certified Public Accountants, have issued an unqualified
(“clean”) opinion on the City of Powder Springs, Georgia’s financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2009. The independent auditor’'s report is located at the front of
the financial section of this report.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent
auditor’s report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the
basic financial statements. MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be
read in conjunction with it.

Profile of the Government

The City of Powder Springs, incorporated in 1859, is located in west-southwest Cobb
County approximately nineteen miles northwest of Atlanta and ten miles southwest of
Marietta. The City is a municipal corporation created under the laws of the State of
Georgia and has as its formal name "The City of Powder Springs, Georgia." A Mayor
and a five-member City Council conduct the affairs of the City. The Mayor and two
Council members are elected citywide and the remaining three Council members are
elected by separate districts. This elected body is responsible for the active
coordination of community resources, to anticipate problems, and meet community
needs.

The City Manager, who is appointed by the Mayor and City Council, oversees the day-
to-day operations of the City and ensures the smooth and efficient delivery of city



services. All activities and functions of the City are administered by the City Manager
and are under the jurisdiction of the Mayor and City Council, as set forth in State and
local law.

The City provides a full range of services to approximately 16,000 residents. These
services include: public safety (police); community development; highways and streets;
water, sewer, and sanitation; public improvements; code enforcement, planning and
zoning; and general administrative services. The City is one of six incorporated
municipalities within Cobb County, and it is not included in Cobb County's reporting
entity. The Powder Springs Downtown Development Authority has met the established
criteria for inclusion in the reporting entity, but has not been included in the current year
presentation because it is not material to the City.

The Council is required to adopt a final budget by no later than the close of the fiscal
year. This annual budget serves as the foundation of the City’s financial planning and
control. The budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g., public safety), and department
(e.g., police). Department heads may transfer resources within a department as they
see fit. Transfers between departments, however, need special approval from the
governing council.

Long-Term financial planning

Unreserved, undesignated fund balance in the general fund is 23% of general fund
operating expenses. This balance would cover approximately 2 72 months of the City
operating expenses and is within the Government Finance Officers Association’s
(GFOA) recommendation of a minimum of 2 months. The maintenance of a sufficient
level of unrestricted fund balance is of critical importance particularly now, with an
uncertain economic outlook with the potential of having a negative effect on the City’s
tax base and rate of development.

Local economy

During the last quarter of fiscal year 2008, the City of Powder Springs began to
experience an economic slowdown that was a reflection of the national economy. This
pattern continued throughout FY 2009. There continued to be a decline in tax
revenues, business licenses as well as commercial and residential building permits.
Once the national and state economy improves, we believe that the City is positioned to
once again continue the growth experienced in the last decade and will see an increase
in commercial development as a result of the past and ongoing transportation projects
designed to improve access to the City, to make available commercial properties along
major travel corridors throughout the City, and to implement economic development
incentives and tools to aid in recruitment efforts. Combined, it is believed that these
factors will better position Powder Springs in the competitive environment of economic
development.

ii



Major initiatives

With the downturn in the economy, it was necessary for the City to reduce its’ original
budget which affected projects planned for the current year. Several projects were
delayed pending economic improvements. For example, the City has continued to
delay construction of the Linear Park, the Lancer Sidewalk Project (Phase 2), the
Preston Place Sidewalk Project, and the Seven Springs Walking Tour signage project.
The completion of a black box theater planned to be located in the City’s community
center was also delayed. City administrative budgets were adjusted to reduce staff
costs, delay capital vehicle and equipment purchases and to defer projects such as the
implementation of a document imaging project.

A reduction in consumer spending has negatively affected SPLOST revenues, however
bids for many of the sidewalk projects undertaken in the current year, were lower than
originally anticipated. Consequently, the City was able to complete several sidewalk
installations throughout the City, including those for Pinegrove, Carter and North
Avenue. The City also initiated a traffic study of the entire city system, with particular
focus on the downtown corridors, in anticipation of a future SPLOST program. This
study will continue during fiscal year 2010 along with additional current construction
projects, such as the Atlanta Street streetscape, the Linear Park pedestrian bridge, and
the Forest Hill, Macedonia, Florence Road and Old Austell Road sidewalks.

The Lewis Road project construction began and is ahead of schedule, with completion
expected in December 2010. All utilities were relocated and work on the overpass at
the Lewis Road railroad crossing began near the end of fiscal year 2009.

During the fiscal year, the City engineer completed an evaluation of three alternate sites
for the police department expansion project. The Council selected its preferred site for
further evaluation and due diligence. In the upcoming fiscal year, the City will complete
the acquisition of property for a new police station and initiate the design and
construction of the facility. It is anticipated the renovation process will be completed in
fiscal year 2011.

The City also plans to acquire and implement updated City-wide financial and operating
software to improve administrative efficiency and reporting, to integrate information
sharing and system processes across the City’s departments, and to improve the
efficient delivery of services to our citizens.

iii



Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada
(GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to
the City of Powder Springs, Georgia for its comprehensive annual financial report for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. This was the nineteenth consecutive year that the
City has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. We believe that our
current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet to the Certificate of
Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The professional support of our auditing staff has been instrumental to the prompt
completion of the associated audit and of this report. Credit also must be given to the
mayor and the governing council for their unfailing support for maintaining high
standards of professionalism in the management of the City’s finances.

Respectfully submitted,

cwirr () alite,

" Beverly Idrip
Finance Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Patricia C. Vaughn, Mayor
Members of the City Council
City of Powder Springs, Georgia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities and each major fund of the City of Powder Springs, Georgia as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the City of Powder Springs, Georgia's management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the.amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major fund of the City of
Powder Springs, Georgia, as of June 30, 2009, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows,
where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 28, 2009
on our consideration of the City of Powder Springs, Georgia’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

The management's discussion and analysis, schedule of funding progress, and budgetary comparison
information on pages 3 through 13 and pages 40 through 42 are not a required part of the basic financial statements
but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we
did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

iiichae! R.Crace  Jean K.Hawkins  Richard H.Lewis  Tammy A.Galvis  Donald L. McGrath Jr. Retired: C.Frank Moore Edwin W.Cubbedge ili

T 770.422.0500 F 770.421.6440 366 Powder Springs Street Marietta, Georgia 30064 www.moore-cubb.com

FOCUSING ON YOU SINCE 1971




Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Powder Springs, Georgia's basic financial statements. The introductory section and statistical
section are presented for purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The introductory section and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Moou 4 Cubledge, Lt

Moore & Cubbedge, LLP

December 28, 2009



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) City of Powder Springs, Georgia
As of and For Year Ended June 30, 2009

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Within this section of the comprehensive annual financial report for the City of Powder Springs, Georgia (the City), the
City’s management is pleased to provide this narrative discussion and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. The City’s financial performance is discussed and analyzed within the context of the
accompanying financial statements and disclosures following this section.

2009 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The City’s assets exceeded its liabilities by $33,145,667 (total net assets) for the calendar year reported.

e Total net assets are comprised of the following:
(1) Capital assets, net of related debt, of $24,450,635 include property and equipment, net of  accumulated
depreciation, and reduced for outstanding debt related to the purchase or construction capital assets.
(2) Net assets of $4,815,046 are restricted by constraints imposed from outside the City such as debt covenants,
grantors, laws, or regulations.
(3) Unrestricted net assets of $3,879,986 represent the portion available to maintain the City’s continuing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

e The City’s governmental funds reported total ending fund balance of $8,628,608 this year. This compares to the
prior year ending fund balance of $7,480,241 showing an increase of $1,148,367 during the current year.
Unreserved fund balance of $4,490,541 at June 30, 2009 shows a substantial increase of $3,931,970 from the prior
year amount at June 30, 2008.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, the unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $1,565,505, or 22.33%
of total General Fund expenditures.

e Overall, the City continues to maintain their financial position, in spite of a depressed economy.

The above financial highlights are explained in more detail in the “financial analysis” section of this document.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This Management Discussion and Analysis document introduces the City’s basic financial statements. The basic financial
statements include (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the basic
financial statements. The City also includes in this report additional information to supplement the basic financial
statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The City’s annual report includes two government-wide financial statements. These statements provide both long-term and
short-term information about the City’s overall financial status. Financial reporting at this level uses a perspective similar to
that found in the private sector with its basis in accrual accounting and elimination or reclassification of activities between
funds.

The first of these government-wide statements is the Statement of Net assets. This is the government-wide statement of
position presenting information that includes all of the City’s asset and liabilities, with the difference reported as net assets.
Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City as
a whole is improving or deteriorating. Evaluation of the overall health of the City would extend to other nonfinancial factors
such as diversification of the taxpayer base or the condition of City infrastructure, in addition to the financial information
provided in this report.
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The second government-wide statement is the Statement of Activities, which reports how the City’s net assets changed
during the current calendar year. All current revenues and expenses are included regardless of when cash is received or paid.

An important purpose of the design of the statement of activities is to show the financial reliance of the City’s distinct
activities or functions on revenues provided by the City’s taxpayers.

Both government-wide financial statements distinguish governmental activities of the City principally supported by taxes
from business-type activities intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges.
Governmental activities include general government, health and welfare, public works, culture and recreation, public safety,
and housing and development. Business-type activities include the water and sewer system and the sanitation system.

The City has one component unit which is a separate legal entity. This component unit, the Powder Springs Downtown
Development Authority has not been included in this report since it is not material to the City.

The government-wide financial statements are presented on pages 15 & 16 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is an accountability unit used to maintain control over resources segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. Within the basic financial statements, fund financial statements focus on the City’s most
significant funds rather than the City as a whole. Major funds are separately reported. The city’s major funds include the
General Fund, the Capital Project Fund and the SPLOST Fund.

The City has two kinds of funds:

Governmental Funds are reported in the fund financial statements and encompass the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, the focus is very different with fund
statements providing a distinctive view of the City’s governmental funds. These statements report short-term fiscal
accountability focusing on the use of spendable resources and balances of spendable resources available at the end of the
year. They are useful in evaluating annual requirements of governmental programs and the commitment of spendable
resources for the near-term.

Since the government-wide focus includes the long-term view, comparisons between these two perspectives may provide
insight into the long-term impact of short-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund operating statement provide a reconciliation to assist in understanding the differences between these two
perspectives.

The basic governmental fund financial statements are presented on pages 17 to 19 of this report.

Proprietary funds are reported in the fund financial statements and generally report services for which the City charges
customers a fee. The City’s proprietary funds are classified as enterprise funds. The enterprise funds essentially encompass
the same functions reported as business-type activities in the government-wide statements. The proprietary fund financial
statements provide separate information for the Water and Sewer Fund and the Sanitation Fund, which are both considered
to be major funds of the City.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements are presented on pages 20 to 24 of this report.



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
As of and For Year Ended June 30, 2009

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements provide information essential to a full understanding of the

City of Powder Springs, Georgia

government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements begin on page 25 of this report.

Required Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information concerning the City’s retirement system funding progress and budget presentations. Budgetary
comparison schedules for the general fund are presented which demonstrate compliance with the City’s adopted and final

revised budget. Required supplementary information can be found on pages 41 to 43 of this report.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS AWHOLE

The City’s net assets at fiscal year-end are $33,145,667. The following table provides a summary of the City’s net assets:

Summary of Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
%
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 of Total
Assets:
Current and
other assets $10,099,187 $ 8,755,139  $4,620,442 $4,577,777 14,719,629  $13,332,916 32%
Capital assets 23,668,612 23,631,604 8,020,263 7,939,321 31,688,875 31,570,925 68%
Total assets 33,767,799 32,386,743 12,640,705 12,517,098 46,408,504 44,903,841 100%
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 731,806 583,174 482,001 826,183 1,213,807 1,409,357 9%
Noncurrent liabilities 9,762,769 10,308,612 2,286,261 1,961,122 12,049,030 12,269,734 91%
Total liabilities 10,494,575 10,891,786 2,768,262 2,787,305 13,262,837 13,679,091 100%
Net Assets:
Investment in
capital assets,
net of related debt 17,998,722 18,252,541 6,461,913 6,131,289 24,460,635 24,383,830 74%
Restricted 2,538,975 2,805,509 2,276,071 2,213,743 4,815,046 5,019,252 15%
Unrestricted 2,745,027 436,907 1,134,459 1,384,761 3,879,486 1,821,668 12%
Total net assets $23,282,724  $21,494957 $9,872,443 $9,729,793  $33,155,167 $31,224,750 100%

Note that in the above table, the interfund receivables and payables between governmental activities and business-type

activities are not eliminated.
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The City maintains a high current ratio. The current ratio compares current assets to current liabilities and is an indication of
the ability to pay current obligations. The current ratio for governmental activities is 13.8 to 1 as compared to 15 to 1 at June
30, 2008. The business-type activities current ratio is 9.6 to 1 which compares favorably to 5.5 to 1 at June 30, 2008.
Overall, the total current ratio at June 30, 2009 is 12.13 to 1 as compared to 9.5 to 1 at June 30, 2008.

Net assets increased $1,778,267 in 2009 governmental activities or approximately 8.3% over the 2008 amount. The net
assets for business-type activities increased $142,650 or 1.5%.The City’s overall financial position increased during fiscal
year 2009 by $1,920,917 or 6.2%. These increases are considered positive financial indicators.

Note that 75% of the governmental activities’ net assets are tied up in capital assets compared to 85% at June 30, 2008. The
City uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens. Capital assets in business-type activities comprise 65% of its
net assets which is comparable to 2008. Capital assets are used in the business-type activities to generate revenues for the
Water & Sewer and Sanitation funds. Combining governmental activities with business type activities, the City has invested
approximately 71% of its total assets invested in capital assets.

The following chart reports the total net asset balances from fiscal year 2004 — 2009:

Net Assets

$35,000,000

$30,000,000

$25,000,000

$20,000,000

$15,000,000

$10,000,000
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Fiscal Year
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The following table provides a summary of the City’s changes in net assets:

Summary of Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total %
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 of Total
Revenues:
Program:
Charges for services $ 1,456,795 $ 2,014,163 $ 4,994,699 $ 4,721,711 $ 6,451,494 $ 6,735,874 45%
Capital grants and
contributions 2,146,575 2,623,179 - - 2,146,575 2,623,179 15%
General:
Property taxes 3,416,920 3,470,331 - - 3,416,920 3,470,331 24%
Insurance premium taxes 698,539 682,198 - - 698,539 682,198 5%
Alcohol tax es 278,121 248,079 - - 278,121 248,079 2%
Franchise taxes 700,127 678,198 - - 700,127 678,198 5%
Settlement proceeds - 16,000 - - - 16,000 0%
Operating grants not
restricted to a
specific program 144,575 - - - 144,575 1%
Unrestricted interest 140,429 395,789 71,725 123,957 212,154 519,746 1%
Gain on sale of assets 151,866 8,000 - - 151,866 8,000 1%
Total revenues 9,133,947 10,135,937 5,066,424 4,845,668 14,200,371 14,981,605 100%
Expenses
General government 1,294,648 1,352,686 1,294,648 1,352,686 11%
Health and w elfare 15,915 13,828 15,915 13,828 0%
Public works 908,492 1,104,408 908,492 1,104,408 7%
Culture and recreation 569,561 629,301 569,561 629,301 5%
Public safety 3,360,690 3,260,209 3,360,690 3,260,209 27%
Housing and dev elopment 801,439 1,070,261 801,439 1,070,261 7%
Interest and fiscal charges
on long-term debt 404,935 423,634 404,935 423,634 3%
Water and Sew er - - 3,915,500 3,808,935 3,915,500 3,808,935 32%
Sanitation - - 1,008,274 1,077,369 1,008,274 1,077,369 8%
Total ex penses 7,355,680 7,854,327 4,923,774 4,886,304 12,279,454 12,740,631 100%
Revenues over expenses 1,778,267 2,281,610 142,650 (40,636) 1,920,917 2,240,974
Transfers - - - - - -
Change in net assets 1,778,267 2,281,610 142,650 (40,636) 1,920,917 2,240,974
Beginning net assets 21,494,957 19,213,347 9,729,793 9,770,429 31,224,750 28,983,776
Ending net assets $ 23,273,224 $ 21,494,957 $ 9,872,443 $ 9,729,793 $ 33,145,667 $ 31,224,750

Governmental Activity Revenues

The City is heavily reliant tax revenues to support governmental operations. Taxes provided $5,093,707 or 73% of the City’s
total operating revenues (excluding capital grants and contributions), as compared to 68% in 2008. Total tax revenue is
substantially unchanged as compared to the 2008 fiscal year, so the percentage increase is primarily attributed to a decrease
in other operating revenue. Charges for services comprise approximately 21% of total operating revenues (excluding capital
grants and contributions) as compared to 27% in 2008. This means that the government’s taxpayers and the City’s other
general governmental revenue fund 94% of the total governmental activity. As a result, the general economy and the City’s
businesses have a major impact on the City’s revenue streams. Also, note that charges for services cover approximately 20%
of governmental operating expenses compared to 25% in 2008.



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) City of Powder Springs, Georgia
As of and For Year Ended June 30, 2009

The following chart summarizes the composition of the City’s government activity revenues:
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Overall, revenues decreased by $ 781,234 or by 5%.

Governmental Activity Expenses

The following table presents the cost of each of the City’s programs including the net cost (i.e., total cost less revenues
generated by the activities). The net costs illustrate the financial burden that was placed on the City’s taxpayers by each of
these functions.

Total Cost Percentage Net Cost Percentage

of Services of Total of Services of Total
General government $ 1,294,648 176% $ 904,908 24.1%
Health and welfare 15,915 0.2% 15,915 0.4%
Public works 908,492 12.4% (1,541,700) -41.0%
Culture and recreation 569,561 7.7% 563,695 15.0%
Public safety 3,360,690 45.7% 2,717,861 72.4%
Housing and development 801,439 10.9% 686,696 18.3%
Interest 404,935 5.5% 404,935 10.8%
Total $ 7,355,680 100.0% $ 3,752,310 100.0%

General government expenses were offset by $389,740, (30% of expenses) in revenues primarily consisting of occupational
taxes and licenses.

Public Works billed $289,683 for street light fees, an increase of approximately $68,000 from the prior year, which offset
expenses by 32%. Public works expenses are also offset by $2,116,305 in SPLOST revenues and $44,467 in capital project
grant revenue.

Revenue from rental fees in the amount of $18,300, (3% of expenses) was collected by Culture and Recreation. This income
is offset by an adjustment for an unrealized capital grant receivable.

Public Safety recovered $642,829, (19% of expenses) primarily from fines and forfeitures and informat fees. This compares
to 31% recovered in 2008.

Housing and development collected $114,743, (14% of expenses) for business licenses, permits and impact fees as
compared to $289,927 or 27% of expenses in 2008.



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) City of Powder Springs, Georgia
As of and For Year Ended June 30, 2009

The following chart summarizes the composition of the City’s government activity expenses:
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The public safety function is the highest cost function with costs of $3,360,690 or 46% of total City expenses as compared to
$3,260,209 or 42% in 2008. The general government function which includes, City administration, Finance, IT, purchasing,
human resources, the Mayor’s office, City Council, Ford Center, and the City Museum, is the 2" highest cost function with
cost of $1,294,648 at 18% of total City expenses as compared to a cost of $1,352,686 or 17% of total expenses in 2008.
Overall, expenses decreased during the current year by $498,647 or 6%.

Business-Type Activities

Business-type activities, also called enterprise or proprietary funds, are established to be supported by fee revenues. The
City’s business-type activities include the Water and Sewer fund and Sanitation fund.

Enterprise fund revenues increased by $282,988 or by 6% during the current fiscal year. Water and sewer revenues increased
approximately $110,000 as a result of the use of a graduated rate schedule for the entire fiscal year. Sanitation revenues
increased by approximately $162,000, due to increased refuse collections. Operating expenses were comparable to the prior
year resulting in an increase in net assets $142,650 for the current fiscal year.

FUND ANALYSIS

Governmental funds are reported in the fund statements with a short-term, inflow and out flow of spendable resources focus.
This information is useful in assessing resources available at the end of the year in comparison with upcoming financing
requirements.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$8,628,608, an increase of $1,148,367 or 15% from the prior year. The change in fund balance is a result of:
e  General fund — ($734,322) — the decrease relates primarily to the transfer of capital lease proceeds received in prior
years to the capital projects fund.
e Capital projects fund — 483,825 — the increase is due to the net of the transfer of prior year capital lease proceeds
from the general fund and the spending down of money set aside for capital projects.
e SPLOST fund - $1,398,864 — the increase results from the recognition of SPLOST proceeds in excess of the
amount spent on SPLOST projects during the fiscal year.

Within the ending fund balance, $4,490,541 is unreserved indicating availability for continuing City service delivery
requirements. However, $2,447,077 of this unreserved fund balance is committed to SPLOST projects and $477,959 of the
unreserved fund balance is committed to other capital projects. The remainder of fund balance is legally restricted or
reserved to indicate it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed for the following:

o  $3,994,900 reserved for projects,
o  $118,492 reserved for prepaid expenses such as liability insurance,
e  $15,308 reserved for inventories,

e  $9,367 designated for fiscal year 2009 encumbrances.



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) City of Powder Springs, Georgia

As of and For Year Ended June 30, 2009
I ——

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund - The General Fund is the primary operating fund and the largest source of day-to-day service delivery. The
fund balance of the General Fund decreased to $5,703,572 during the fiscal year. Of this amount, $4,138,067 is reserved for
encumbrances, prepaid items, projects and inventories. The ending unreserved fund balance of $1,565,505 is considered
adequate, representing the equivalent of 22.3% of annual expenditures.

General Fund revenues decreased during the fiscal year by $1,420,050 or 17%. The most significant changes from fiscal
year 2008 are described below:
e Fines and Forfeitures collections decreased by $216,203 or 29% due to a reduced number of citations being issued
during the year.
e Intergovernmental revenue was $715,303 or 83% more in the prior year due to inclusion of grant proceeds and
Cobb County reimbursements for Ford Center and library construction and renovation completed in the prior year.
¢ Investment earnings decreased $246,913 or 64%, primarily due to lower investment rates.
e Impact fees were approximately $100,000 less and licenses and permit fees were approximately $92,000 less due to
a slowdown of development. Tower rental fees decreased approximately $50,000 as a result of the current year
tower sale.

General fund expenditures were reduced, to a greater extent by $2,374,073 or 25%. Significant changes to expenditures
include:

e Expenditures for the health and welfare functions decreased by $343,505 due to the completion of the Ford Center
construction in the prior year.

e Inresponse to the economy’s effect on development during the fiscal year, housing and development eliminated the
equivalent of 4% full time positions at mid-year which accounts for the majority of the department’s decrease in
expenditures of $226,388 or 22%.

e  Culture and recreation function expenditures decreased $1,549,912 or 94%, due to the completion of construction
and renovation projects in the prior year. The current year expenditures reflect ongoing operating cost.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund of the City reflects expenditures concerning the capital projects as
approved by the governing body. It is considered a major fund. During fiscal year 2009 the fund balance of the Capital
Projects Fund increased to $477,959 due to the transfer of capital lease proceeds, designated to fund capital projects, from
the general fund in excess of expenditures incurred during the year. Expenditures during the current fiscal year were
$375,664 as compared to $5,361,745 in 2008.

SPLOST Fund — This fund is used to account for capital projects and infrastructure improvements designated to be funded
from County SPLOST revenues. The fund balance increase of 133% is due to the excess of uniform SPLOST remittances
from Cobb County over project expenditures during the year. Expenditures, including transfers, for SPLOST projects were
$719,491 during the year as compared to expenditures of $1,708,009 in 2008. The transfer of SPLOST money to the general
fund was a reimbursement for Park construction expenses which were paid from the general fund.

Major Proprietary Funds

The City’s proprietary fund statements share the same focus as the government-wide statements, reporting both short-term
and long-term information about financial status.

The City operates a water and sewer fund which provides water and sewer service to residential and commercial customers.
Fund equity of this fund at the end of the year amounted to $9,282,809. Equity decreased by $4,696 during the year. Fund
expenditures increased by $112,948 and revenues increased to a lesser extent of $111,451, which accounts for the decrease
in fund equity.

The sanitation fund provides disposal and recycling services to residents of the City of Powder Springs, to residents
requesting services who live outside of the City’s limits and to a few commercial customers. Sanitation’s fund equity at the
end of the year amounted to $589,634. Equity increased by $147,346 during the year due to the increase in operating
revenues of $161,537.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) City of Powder Springs, Georgia
As of and For Year Ended June 30, 2009

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City’s budget is prepared in accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia and the Code of Ordinances of the City.
The City adopts the fiscal budget during June of the preceding fiscal year. During June of 2008, the City adopted a General
Fund Budget of $14,703,904 for General Fund expenditures (including transfers). At the end of the fiscal year, the final
amended budgeted expenditures were $8,061,582 which included a decrease of $6,642,322.

Actual (Budgetary

Original Budget Final Amended Budget Basis)
Revenues and other financing
sources $ 7,349,154 $ 7,257,603 $ 7,088,687
Expenditures and other
financing uses $ 14,703,904 $ 8,061,582 $ 7,823,009

Significant budget amendments included the following:

e The entire amount of capital lease proceeds received and dedicated to capital projects was budgeted as a transfer
out during the current year. However expenditures for these projects will be incurred over several years.
Consequently, the budget for transfers out was reduced from $5,927,826 to $797,917, to reflect the amount
expected to be transferred during the current year. This amendment decreased the original budget by $5,129,909.

e Approximately, 1.5 million was reduced from governmental operating functions in order to limit expenditures to
resources expected to be received in the current year.

e Significant reductions included:

1. A salary freeze mid-year for all City employees.

2. Delayed or eliminated capital asset purchases, training and travel expenses, information technology
projects and software purchases resulting in a reduction of the administration function’s budget by 25%
($560,045) and of the police budget by 8% ($268,144).

3. Significant housing and development department budget amendments included the eliminating all planned
expenses for economic development and employee layoffs in the equivalent of 4 % full-time positions in
response to the economic conditions which significantly affected the City’s growth and development. The
total adjustments resulted in a 37% ($471,437) reduction of the function’s budget.

4. Public works department delayed infrastructure and paving projects, software acquisition and other
planned maintenance reducing the budget by $165,295.

The revenue budget, in total was not significantly affected. The total budgeted for revenues were reduced by approximately
2%.

A notable variance between budgeted and actual revenues includes the delayed receipt of the State property tax HTRG
exemption for which the date of receipt was not readily determinable at year-end.

The City was able to limit the current year expenditures to the amended budget, with the exception of a $31 variance in debt
service.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets: The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2009,
amounts to $17,471,467 and $6,461,913 respectively. These are net of accumulated depreciation and related debt. This
investment includes land, buildings, machinery and equipment as well as infrastructure. As allowed under GASB Statement
No. 34, the City has elected not to report major general infrastructure assets retroactively. The table below shows capital
assets net of accumulated depreciation as compared to prior year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) City of Powder Springs, Georgia
As of and For Year Ended June 30, 2009

2009 Capital Assets

(Net of Depreciation)
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Construction in Progress $ 4,824,875  $ 5,260,702  $ -8 - 8 4824875 $ 5,260,702
Land 4,593,776 4,593,776 159,077 159,077 4,752,853 4,752,853
Buildings and Improvements 6,598,197 6,803,322 369,626 397,222 6,967,823 7,200,544
Furniture and Fixtures 57,932 80,504 2,234 2,956 60,166 83,460
Parks Equipment 2,178,223 2,465,610 - - 2,178,223 2,465,610
Vehicles and Equipment 507,549 869,365 352,095 292,161 859,644 1,161,526
Infrastructure 4,908,060 3,558,325 - - 4,908,060 3,558,325
Utility System - - 7,137,231 7,087,905 7,137,231 7,087,905
Total $ 23,668,612 $ 23631604 $ 8,020,263 $ 7,939,321 $ 31688875 $ 31,570,925

At June 30, 2009, the depreciable capital assets for governmental activities were 36% depreciated, slightly above the 2008
percentage of 33%. This comparison indicates that the City is replacing its assets at about the same rate as they are
depreciating which is a positive indicator.

Significant capital asset additions during the year included the following:

e Resurfacing, sidewalk and drainage projects funded with SPLOST funds totaling $445,534, were completed and
transferred from construction in progress

e The Frank Aiken SPLOST project for $812,350 was also completed and moved from construction in progress

e Final Senior Center renovation expenses of $61,737 were transferred from construction in progress.

e Police vehicles and software purchases were added for approximately $60,000 and public works road
improvements outlays were approximately $200,000

e The water and sewer fund acquired a vacuum truck for $159,765 and expended over $500,000 for water and sewer
line extensions and improvements and equipment

Major projects included in the construction in progress account are:
e SPLOST resurfacing, park, streetscape and sidewalk projects totaling $852,548
e Lewis road construction of $3,782,155
e  Silver Comet Trail Park improvements of $190,172

Major projects nearing completion during the fiscal year and will be transferred out of the construction in progress account
and into the appropriate category in fiscal year 2010.

The City began capitalizing infrastructure assets and depreciating them over the estimated useful life in fiscal year 2004.
Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 7 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Long-term Debt. At June 30, 2009, the City had the following outstanding long-term debt (principal portion):

e $4,535,000 from an intergovernmental agreement liability with the Powder Springs Downtown Development
Authority for the purpose of financing the renovation and expansion of a police station and City administrative
offices.

e $4,515,000 from an intergovernmental agreement liability with the Powder Springs Downtown Development
Authority for the purchase of the United Community Bank building, renovation of the Ford Center and acquisition
of the Lewis Road right-of-way.

e $225,000 from an intergovernmental agreement liability with the Powder Springs Downtown Development
Authority for the police station built in 2001.

e $241,800 in capital leases funded through the Georgia Municipal Association for vehicles and equipment for the
General Fund

e $86,706 from agreement with Cobb County for the acquisition of property.
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I ——
e $273,416 in capital leases funded through the Georgia Municipal Association and Oshkosh Capital for vehicles and
equipment for the Water and Sewer Fund and the Sanitation Fund.
e $330,000 in a FY2004 Water and Sewer Refunding Bond Issue.

e $970,252 in loan payable obligations with the Georgia Environmental Facilities Authority for downtown water
system conversion project.

e  $90,205 though an agreement with Cobb County for sewer system tap fees.

The City is legally required to limit outstanding general obligation debt to 10% of the assessed valuation of taxable property
within the City which equates to $43,253,406.

Additional information on the City’s debt can be found in Note 8 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.
Economic Factors Affecting the City of Powder Springs

The Mayor and Council consider many factors when adopting the fiscal year 2009 budget. These factors have a significant
effect on the City’s financial position or results of operations. Key assumptions are as follows:

e The millage rate is adopted in June of each year for the operations and maintenance in General Fund. The millage
rate for 2009 was 8.50 which did not change from the prior year.

e The tax base for real and personal property is expected to decrease over the next few years due to the effect of the
national economy. The property tax digest is not received until mid-year and assessed value estimates of property
taxes are based upon recent annexation, building activities and current economic conditions.

e Business license fees are based on gross receipts of establishments. The City has experienced an economic
slowdown due the national economy which has resulted in a decline of business licenses, building permits and other
development fees. SPLOST revenues from the County are also expected to be negatively impacted by the current
economy.

e Water use restrictions imposed due to draught conditions were relaxed near the end of the current year which
should result in an increase in water fees in the future fiscal year.

e Sanitation rates remained unchanged in the 2009 budget. Anticipated residential development is not expected to
increase due to the economic slowdown experienced in the current year.

e Needed procurement of updated financial and systems software and IT equipment and systems planned for FY
2010. The completion of the Lewis Road Project and the Police department facility capital projects are also planned
for next fiscal year.

o Employee health and retirement benefits must be analyzed in order to manage cost increases.

e In developing the FY2010 budget the City does not anticipate the use of unreserved fund balance in the General
Fund.

Contacting the City’s Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances, comply with finance related laws and
regulations, and demonstrate the City’s commitment to public accountability. Questions concerning any of the information

provided in this report or requests for additional information should be directed to the Finance Director at 4484 Marietta
Street, Powder Springs, Georgia 30127.
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CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2009
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,645,548 $ 910,416 2,555,964
Investments 905,801 741 906,542
Receivables, net 743,347 716,702 1,460,049
Due from other governments 570,222 - 570,222
Internal balances (604,846) 604,846 -
Inventories 15,308 93,563 108,871
Prepaid items 118,492 12,351 130,843
Other assets, net 340,261 5,752 346,013
Restricted assets 6,365,054 2,276,071 8,641,125
Capital assets, non depreciated 9,418,651 159,077 9,577,728
Capital assets, depreciated, net 14,249,961 7,861,186 22,111,147
Total assets 33,767,799 12,640,705 46,408,504
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and
other accrued liabilities 477,341 482,001 959,342
Due to other governments 2,517 - 2,517
Unearned revenue 251,948 - 251,948
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 582,469 517,475 1,099,944
Due in more than one year 9,180,300 1,768,786 10,949,086
Total liabilities 10,494,575 2,768,262 13,262,837
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 17,988,722 6,461,913 24,450,635
Restricted for:
Debt service - 347,203 347,203
Completion of projects 2,538,975 - 2,538,975
Renewal and extensions - 1,928,868 1,928,868
Unrestricted 2,745,527 1,134,459 3,879,986
Total net assets $ 23273224 § 9,872,443 33,145,667
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 14
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CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2009
Total
General Capital Projects Governmental
Fund Fund SPLOST Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,634,975 $ 10,573 $ - $ 1,645,548
Restricted assets 3,994,900 468,046 1,902,108 6,365,054
Investments 904,845 956 - 905,801
Receivables, net 743,347 - - 743,347
Prepaid items 118,492 - - 118,492
Due from other funds 128,754 30,000 - 158,754
Due from other governments - - 570,222 570,222
Inventory 15,308 - - 15,308
Total assets $ 7,540,621 $ 509,575 $ 2472330 § 10,522,526
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 352,663 $ - $ 25,253 $ 377,916
Accrued liabilities 99,425 - - 99,425
Due to other funds 731,984 31,616 - 763,600
Due to other governments 2,517 - - 2,517
Deferred revenue 650,460 - - 650,460
Total liabilities 1,837,049 31,616 25,253 1,893,918
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances 9,367 - - 9,367
Prepaids 118,492 - - 118,492
Inventories 15,308 - - 15,308
Projects 3,994,900 - - 3,994,900
Unreserved, reported in:
General fund 1,565,505 - - 1,565,505
Capital project funds - 477,959 2,447,077 2,925,036
Total fund balances 5,703,572 477,959 2,447,077 8,628,608
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 7,540,621 $ 509,575 $ 2,472,330
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are
different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds. 23,668,612
Property tax revenue earned but unavailable is not reported in the funds. 398,511
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
and, therefore, are deferred in the funds:
Unamortized bond issue costs 166,850
Deposit on property 173,412
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds:
Accrued compensated absences (170,094)
Unmatured leases and contracts (9,592,675)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 23,273,224

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Street lights
Intergovernmental
Investment earnings
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
General government
Health and welfare
Housing and development
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation

Capital outlay

Debt service

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Debt issued
Sale of capital assets
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Total
General Capital Projects Governmental
Fund Fund SPLOST Funds

$ 5,024,064 § - $ - $ 5,024,064
406,026 - - 406,026
522,914 - - 522914
289,420 - - 289,420
144,406 44,467 2,116,305 2,305,178
137,745 634 2,050 140,429
232,677 1,876 - 234,553
6,757,252 46,977 2,118,355 8,922,584
1,153,712 - - 1,153,712
15,110 - - 15,110
788,566 - - 788,566
3,054,098 - - 3,054,098
905,381 155,064 - 1,060,445
93,237 - - 93,237

- 220,600 601,341 821,941
1,000,394 - - 1,000,394
7,010,498 375,664 601,341 7,987,503
(253,246) (328,687) 1,517,014 935,081
118,150 812,512 - 930,662
(812,512) - (118,150) (930,662)
61,420 - - 61,420
151,866 - - 151,866
(481,076) 812,512 (118,150) 213,286
(734,322) 483,825 1,398,864 1,148,367

6,437,894 (5,866) 1,048,213 7,480,241

$ 5,703,572  § 477,959 $ 2,447,077 $ 8,628,608
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CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA
RECONCILATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (page 15) are
different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 17) $ 1,148,367
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlays ($1,222,415) exceeded depreciation ($1,185,407) in the current period. 37,008
The net effect of revenues in the statement of activities that do not proved the current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 59,496
Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt
increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. Repayment of debt principal
are expenditures in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities.
Also government funds report the effects of issuance cost when debt is first issued, whereas
these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.
Debt issued (61,420)
Principal payments 595,459
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the
governmental funds.
Accrued compensated absences 17,995
Amortization for bond issue costs and loss on refunding (18,638)
Change in net assets of governmental activities (page 15) $ 1,778,267

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 18



CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2009

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Accounts receivable, net of
allowance for uncollectibles

Due from other funds

Inventory
Restricted assets:

Cash
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash
Investment
Total restricted assets

Property, plant and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, net

Other assets:
Unamortized bond costs
Total other assets

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Enterprise Funds

Water and
Sewer Sanitation Totals
$ 530,827 $ 379,589 $ 910,416
- 741 741
525,805 190,897 716,702
701,482 91,426 792,908
93,563 - 93,563
169,703 - 169,703
9,607 2,744 12,351
2,030,987 665,397 2,696,384
743,936 - 743,936
1,362,432 - 1,362,432
2,106,368 - 2,106,368
18,571,315 1,057,168 19,628,483
(10,641,317) (966,903) (11,608,220)
7,929,998 90,265 8,020,263
5,752 - 5,752
5,752 - 5,752
10,042,118 90,265 10,132,383
$ 12,073,105 $ 755,662 $ 12,828,767
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CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2009

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll liabilities
Due to other funds
Capital lease obligation
Notes payable

Revenue bonds payable

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities (net of current portion):

Customer deposits
Compensated absences
Capital lease obligation
Notes payable

Total long term liabilities

Total liabilities

Fund equity (deficit):
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted
Restricted for:
Debt service

Renewals and extensions

Total fund equity

Total liabilities and fund equity

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Enterprise Funds

Water and

Sewer Sanitation Totals
$ 432,173 17,647 $ 449,820
43,269 24 475 67,744
166,653 21,409 188,062
50,852 62,513 113,365
53,864 - 53,864
314,683 - 314,683
1,061,494 126,044 1,187,538
571,831 - 571,831
22,650 7,661 30,311
127,728 32,323 160,051
1,006,593 - 1,006,593
1,728,802 39,984 1,768,786
2,790,296 166,028 2,956,324
6,466,484 4,571) 6,461,913
540,254 594,205 1,134,459
347,203 - 347,203
1,928,868 - 1,928,868
9,282,809 589,634 9,872,443
$ 12,073,105 755,662 $ 12,828,767

20




CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Enterprise Funds
Major
Water and
Sewer Sanitation Totals
Operating revenues:
Charges for services $ 3,819,090 $ 1,145,747 $ 4964837
Other 29,505 357 29,862
Total operating revenues 3,848,595 1,146,104 4,994,699
Operating expenses:
Water purchases 585,676 - 585,676
Sewage processing fees 1,137,113 - 1,137,113
Salaries and related costs 1,045,375 609,060 1,654,435
Other operating expenses 444,398 328,568 772,966
Depreciation and amortization 638,204 63,967 702,171
Total operating expenses 3,850,766 1,001,595 4,852,361
Operating income (loss) (2,171) 144,509 142,338
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income 62,209 9,516 71,725
Interest expense (64,734) (6,679) (71,413)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (2,525) 2,837 312
Increase (decrease) in fund equity (4,696) 147,346 142,650
Fund equity at beginning of year 9,287,505 442,288 9,729,793
Fund equity at end of year $ 9,282,809 $ 589,634 $ 9,872,443

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 21



CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Enterprise Funds
Major
Water and
Sewer Sanitation Totals
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities:
Cash received from customers $ 3,827,225 1,126,135 4,953,360
Cash payments for goods and services (1,727,379) (424,237) (2,151,616)
Cash payments for employee services and fringe benefits (1,052,495) (610,950) (1,663,445)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 1,047,351 90,948 1,138,299
Cash flows provided by (used in) capital
and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets (548,392) - (548,392)
Principal payments on revenue bonds (325,000) - (325,000)
Principal payments on capital lease obligations (46,013) (80,189) (126,202)
Principal payments on loans payable - (55,061) - (55,061)
Interest paid (64,734) (6,679) (71,413)
Net cash provided by (used in) capital
and related financing activities (1,039,200) (86,868) (1,126,068)
Cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities:
Sale of investments 442,098 (11) 442,087
Interest received 62,207 9,518 71,725
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 504,305 9,507 513,812
Net increase (decrease) in cash 512,456 13,587 526,043
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Unrestricted 467,332 366,002 833,334
Restricted 464,678 - 464,678
Total cash at beginning of year ' 932,010 366,002 1,298,012
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Unrestricted 530,827 379,589 910,416
Restricted 913,639 - 913,639
Total cash at end of year $ 1,444466 § 379,589 1,824,055

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Continued on next page. 22



CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Reconciliation of operating income (loss)
to net cash from operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in receivables
(Increase) decrease in other receivables
(Increase) decrease in inventory
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll liabilities
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences
Total adjustments

Net cash from (to) operating activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Continued from previous page.

Enterprise Funds
Major
Water and
Sewer Sanitation Totals
$ (2,171) $ 144,509 $ 142,338
638,204 63,967 702,171
(6,487) - (6,487)
(66,680) (19,969) (86,649)
(4,470) - (4,470)
56,346 - 56,346
34,930 (91,426) (56,496)
(9,607) (2,744) (12,351)
21,900 - 21,900
247,384 (1,952) 245,432
434 1,397 1,831
145,122 453 145,575
(7,554) (3,287) (10,841)
1,049,522 (53,561) 995,961
$ 1,047,351 $ 90,948 $ 1,138,299
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CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

The accounting methods and procedures adopted by the City of Powder Springs, Georgia, conform to generally
accepted accounting principles as applied to governmental entities.

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

Reporting Entity

The City operates under an elected Mayor/Council form of government. The City's major operations
include public safety, culture-recreation, regulation and control of the water system, highways and
streets, sanitation, and general administrative services.

In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, as set forth in Statement of
Governmental Accounting Standards No 14. “The Financial Reporting Entity”, the financial
statements had previously included the Powder Springs Downtown Development Authority as a
component unit of the City. However, the financial information of the Powder Springs Development
Authority is not material to the City and therefore is not included in the current year presentation.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the activities of the primary government. For the most part, the
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. The City’s
net assets are reported in three parts -invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net assets;
and unrestricted net assets. The City first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns
in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60
days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures
related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when a payment is due.
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CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

0))

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (continued)

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is
received by the government.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for resources received to be used
for the acquisition or construction of capital facilities.

SPLOST Fund - The City’s SPLOST (Special Purpose Local Sales Tax) Fund is used to account for
financial resources to be used for the construction and expansion of roads and bridges and the
replacement of 800 MHZ radios.

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:
The Water and Sewer Fund accounts for the operations of the City’s water distribution services.
The Sanitation Fund accounts for the operation of the City’s sanitation department operations.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-
sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation.

The government has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between
the government’s water, sewer, sanitation and various other functions of the government. Elimination
of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions
concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses for enterprise
funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues
and expenses.

Certain indirect costs have been included as part of the program expenses reported for the various
functional activities.
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CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(0))

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D.

Cash and Investments

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand
deposits and all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased.
Investments in money market depository accounts and Georgia Fund 1 are reported as investments.

Statutes authorize the City to invest in U.S. Government obligations, U.S. Government agency
obligations, State of Georgia obligations, obligations of other counties, municipal corporations and
political subdivisions of the State of Georgia which are rated “AA” or better by Moody’s Investors
Service, Inc., negotiable certificates of deposit issued by any bank or trust company organized under
the laws of any state of the United States of America or any national banking association, repurchase
agreements when collateralized by U.S. Government or agency obligations, and pooled investment
programs sponsored by the State of Georgia for the investment of local government funds.

Georgia Fund 1 is the combined state general fund and local government investment pool and is
managed by the Office of Treasury and Fiscal Services. Georgia Fund 1 is offered by the State of
Georgia to counties, municipalities, public colleges and universities, boards of education, special
districts, state agencies, and other authorized entities as a conservative, efficient and liquid investment
alternative. The primary investment objectives of Georgia Fund 1 are safety of capital, liquidity, yield
and diversification with primary emphasis on safety of capital and liquidity. Georgia Fund 1 invests
the pooled funds in U.S. Treasury obligations, securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government
or any of its agencies or instrumentalities, banker's acceptances and repurchase agreements contracted
with highly rated counterparties, and commercial paper rated "A-1" or better. The fund may also
invest in certificates of deposit issued by banks domiciled in the State of Georgia that maintain
Standard & Poor's ratings of "A-1" or better. "AAAm" criteria calls for maximum average portfolio
maturities of 60 days or less. The reported value of funds invested in Georgia Fund 1 is the same as
the fair value of the pool shares.

Investments for the City are reported at fair value.
Short-Term/Long-Term Interfund Receivables/Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as “due from other
funds” or “due to other funds.”

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “interfund receivables/payables” (i.e., the current
portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund
loans).

Noncurrent portions of long-term interfund loan receivables are reported as advances and are offset
equally by a fund balance reserve account which indicates that they do not constitute expendable
available financial resources and therefore are not available for appropriation.

Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the business-type activities
are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at of average cost using the first in/first-out (FIFO) method. Inventory in the
Enterprise Funds consists of expendable supplies held for consumption and items needed for repairs or
improvements to the utility system. Inventory in the General Fund consists of fuel. The purchase
method is used to account for inventories within the City's Funds.
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CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
G.  Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements. As allowed under GASB No. 34, the City has
elected not to report major general infrastructure assets retroactively. General infrastructure assets
include roads, bridges, underground pipe (other than related to utilities), traffic signals and other
infrastructure assets acquired subsequent to July 1, 2003. These infrastructure assets are likely to be
the largest asset class of the City. Neither their historical cost nor related depreciation has historically
been reported in the financial statements.

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not
available. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date donated.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives are not capitalized. The capitalized threshold for capital assets is $1,000.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of
the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.
Depreciation has been calculated on an estimated useful life as follows:

Governmental
Water & Sewer Sanitation Funds
Buildings and improvements 5-30 years -- 30 years
Park equipment -- -- 15 years
Utility system 30 years -- -
Vehicles and equipment 5-30 years 3-10 years 3-5 years
Infrastructure -- -- 30 years

H.  Compensated Absences

Accumulated unpaid vacation pay amounts are accrued when incurred by the City in the government-
wide and proprietary financial statements. The liability of the proprietary funds is recorded as an
expense and a liability of those funds as the benefits accrue to the employees. A liability in the
governmental funds is reported only if the benefit has matured.

Accumulated sick pay benefits for City employees have not been recorded as a liability because the
payment of the benefits is contingent upon the future illness of an employee. It is not expected that
any unrecorded sick pay benefits will exceed a normal year's accumulation.

I Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items. The consumption method is used to account for prepaid items within the City’s funds.

L. Fund Equity
Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditure or legally segregated

for a specific future use. Designated fund balances represent tentative plans for future use of financial
resources.
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CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
K.  Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets.
Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the
bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond
premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the
term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

L. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

(2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS
- Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may not be returned to it.
The City limits its exposure to custodial credit risk by requiring deposits to be collateralized in accordance

with state law. As of June 30, 2009, the City was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

The following is a summary of the City's investments at June 30, 2009:

Weighted

Fair Average

Description Rating Value Maturity
Georgia Fund I AAAm $3,136,792 41 days

The City manages its exposure to credit risk by limiting investments to those authorized by statue, and its
exposure to interest rate risk limiting investments to the highly liquid local government investment pool,
Georgia Fund 1. See note 1(D).

Interest Rate Risk — The City does not have a formal policy addressing interest rate risk.

Credit Risk — The City does not have a formal policy addressing credit risk.
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CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(3) RESTRICTED ASSETS

Water and Sewer Fund Cash Investments Interest Total
Debt Service Funds $ 347203 $ - $ -- $ 347,203
Renewal and Extension Funds 566.436 1,362,432 - 1,928.868

$ 913,639 $1,362,432 $ -- $ 2,276,071

Governmental Funds
General Fund $ 584,987 $3,342,877 $ 67,036 $ 3,994,900
SPLOST Fund 1,902,108 -- -- 1,902,108
Project Funds - 468.046 - 468,046

$ 2,487,095 $3.810,923 $ 67,036 b 6,725,054

(4) PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes were levied as of July 31,
2008. The billing for the tax levy was mailed September 21, 2008. The billing is considered due upon receipt
by the taxpayer; however, the actual due date is based on a period up to 60 days after the tax billing mailing,
November 21, 2008. On this date, the bill becomes delinquent and penalties and interest may be assessed by
the City. Liens may attach to property for unpaid taxes at any time within seven years after the due date.

Property taxes were levied on an estimated actual value of $1,081,335,148 at a 40% assessed value for a total
assessment less exemptions of $358,139,186. Based upon the millage levy of 8.5 mills, a homeowner would
pay $8.50 per $1,000 of the property’s January 1* assessed valuation.

(5) RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 2009 consist of the following:

Allowance
Taxes & Accrued Utility for Net
Fines Interest Accounts Other  Uncollectibles Receivables
General Fund $450,003 $ 358 $§ 49,259 $281,619 $ (37,892) $ 743,347
Water & Sewer Fund -- 17,254 490,973 20,740 (3,162) 525,805
Sanitation Fund - - 190,897 -- - 190,897

$450,003 $17.612 §$§ 731,129 $302359 § (41,054) $1,460,049
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CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(6) INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLE BALANCES
Interfund loans receivable are considered “available spendable resources.”

Such balances at June 30, 2009 include Due from (to) and are summarized as follows:

RECEIVABLE TO
Water
General & Capital
Fund Sewer Projects Sanitation Total

PAYABLE FROM

General Fund $ - $ 701,443 $ 30,000 $ 541 $ 731,984
Capital Projects Fund 31,616 - - - 31,616
Water & Sewer 75,768 - - 90,885 166,653
Sanitation Fund 21,370 39 - - 21,409
Total $ 128,754 $ 701,482 $ 30,000 $ 91,426 $ 951,662

Generally, outstanding balances between funds reported as “due to/from other funds” include outstanding
charges by one fund to another for services and goods, subsidy commitments outstanding at year-end, and
other miscellaneous receivables/payables between funds.
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CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(7) CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2009 was as follows:

Beginning Reclasses/ Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 4,593,776 $ - $ - $ 4,593,776

Construction in progress 5,260,702 883,794 (1,319,621) 4,824,875
Total capital assets not being depreciated 9,854,478 883,794 (1,319,621) 9,418,651
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 8,632,174 73,889 - 8,706,063

Fumiture and fixtures 125,960 - - 125,960

Parks equipment 4,380,280 - - 4,380,280

Vehicle and equipment 3,463,226 65,611 - 3,528,837

Infrastructure - streets 4,012,047 1,518,742 - 5,530,789
Total capital assets being depreciated 20,613,687 1,658,242 - 22,271,929
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements (1,828,852) (279,014) - (2,107,866)

Furmnitures and fixtures (45,456) (22,572) - (68,028)

Parks equipment (1,914,670) (287,387) - (2,202,057)

Vehicles and equipment (2,593,861) (427,427) - (3,021,288)

Infrastruture - streets (453,722) (169,007) - (622,729)
Total accumulated depreciation (6,836,561) (1,185,407) - (8,021,968)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 13,777,126 472,835 - 14,249,961
Total govermental activities capital assets, net $ 23,631,604 $ 37,011 $ (1,319,621) $ 23,668,612
Business-type activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 159,077 $ - $ - $ 159,077
Total capital assets not being depreciated 159,077 - - 159,077
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 845,513 - - 845,513

Fumiture and fixtures 55,920 - - 55,920

Utility systems 16,110,663 542,555 - 16,653,218

Vehicles and equipment 1,695,336 219,419 - 1,914,755
Total capital assets being depreciated 18,707,432 761,974 - 19,469,406
Less accumulated depreciated for:

Building and improvements (448,291) (27,596) - (475,887)

Furniture and fixtures (52,964) (722) - (53,686)

Utility systems (9,022,758) (493,229) - (9,515,987)

Vehicles and equipment (1,403,175) (159,485) - (1,562,660)
Total accumulated depreciation (10,927,188) (681,032) - (11,608,220)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 7,780,244 80,942 - 7,861,186
Total business-type activities capital assets,net $ 7,939,321 $ 80,942 $ - $ 8,020,263
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(7) CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities

General government $ 171,086
Public safety 353,564
Public works, including depreciation of general infrastructure 108,904
Housing and development 12,989
Culture and recreation 538,061
Health and welfare 803
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 1,185.407
Business-type activities:
Water $ 321,605
Sewer 295,460
Sanitation 63,967
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 681,032

(8) LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities of the City for the year ended June 30, 2009:

Beginning
Balance Ending Due Within
(As Revised) Additions  Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental activities:
Capital leases $ 10,016,157 $ 61,420 $(560,777) $ 9,516,800 $ 547,787
Less deferred amounts
on refunding (17,022) -- 6,191 (10,831) --
Intergovernmental contracts 121,388 -- (34,682) 86,706 34,682
Compensated absences 188.089 88.625 (106.620) 170,094 96.954
Governmental activity
Long-term liabilities $ 10,308,612 $ 150,045 $ (695.888) §$ 9,762,769  $ 582,469
Business-type activities:
Capital leases $ 186,036 $ 213,582 $(126,202) $ 273,416 $ 113,365
Loans payable 1,115,518 - (55,061) 1,060,457 53,864
Revenue bonds 655,000 - (325,000) 330,000 330,000
Less deferred amounts
on refunding (30,633) - 15,316 (15,317) (15,317)
Customer deposits 549,931 21,900 -- 571,831 --
Compensated absences 76,715 30,673 (41.514) 65.874 35.563

Business —type activity

Long-term liabilities $ 2552567 $§ 266,155 § (532461) §$ 2286261 § 517,475
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®

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Governmental Activities:

Capital Leases

On September 1, 2001, the Powder Springs Downtown Development Authority issued $715,000 in serial
revenue bonds and $490,000 in term revenue bonds for the purpose of providing funding for the cost of the
acquisition, construction, furnishing and equipping of a new police station.

On September 1, 2001, the City and the Powder Springs Downtown Development Authority entered into an
intergovernmental contract. The contract obligated the City to make lease payments directly to the Trustee
for the purpose of paying the principal and interest on the outstanding balance of the 2001 Revenue Bonds
issued by the Authority. The contract enabled the City to lease from the Authority the facilities constructed
by the Authority. The lease was a direct financing lease in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

On March 30, 2004, the Authority issued $680,000 in Series 2004 Revenue Refunding Bonds (Police Station
Project) for the purpose of refunding the Authority's 2001 Revenue Bonds.

On March 30, 2004, the City and the Powder Springs Downtown Development Authority entered into a new
intergovernmental contract. The contract obligates the City to make lease payments directly to the Trustee
for the purpose of paying the principal and interest on the outstanding balance of the 2004 refunding Revenue
Bonds issued by the Authority. This contract enables the City to lease from the Authority the facilities
constructed by the Authority. The lease is a direct financing lease in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. The contract will not expire until full payment of the bonds. Prior to expiration of the
lease upon payment in full of the bonds outstanding, the City may purchase the project from the Authority for
$100.

As a result of the refunding, the City decreased it's total debt service requirement by $67,500 which resulted
in an economic gain (difference between the present value of the debt service payments on the old and new
debt) of $65,093.

On March 30, 2005, the Authority issued $4,895,000 in Series 2005 Revenue Bonds for the purpose of
purchasing the United Community Bank building for the use of administrative offices of the City, renovations
of the Ford Center for public recreational and cultural use and acquisition of right-of-way for the Lewis Road
improvement project.

On March 30, 2005, the City and the Powder Springs Downtown Development Authority entered into a new
intergovernmental contract. The contract obligates the City to make lease payments directly to the Trustee
for the purpose of paying the principal and interest on the outstanding balance of the 2005 Revenue Bonds
issued by the Authority. This contract enables the City to lease from the Authority the facilities purchased by
the Authority. The lease is a direct financing lease in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. The contract will not expire until full payment of the bonds. Prior to expiration of the lease upon
payment in full of the bonds outstanding, the City may purchase the project from the Authority for $100.

On August 29, 2006, the Authority issued $4,715,000 in Series 2006 Revenue Bonds for the purpose of
financing the renovation and expansion of a police station and the City Administrative offices, and acquiring
and renovating a building to be used as a City Museum. Concurrent with the bond issuances the City entered
into an intergovernmental contract with the Powder Springs Downtown Development Authority whereby the
City has agreed to purchase the projects through a capital lease over the life of the bonds.
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LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Additionally, the City is obligated under capital leases for vehicles and equipment. The gross amount of
assets recorded under capital leases at June 30, 2009 is $1,835,252 for the police facility and City Hall
renovations, and $589,089 for the vehicles & equipment. Accumulated depreciation related to these assets at
June 30, 2009 is $751,972 and $280,144, respectively.

The following is a schedule of future lease payments as of June 30, 2009:

Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2010 $ 547,787 $ 385,162 $ 933,849
2011 496,342 265,808 762,150
2012 457,650 348,718 806,368
2013 455,027 313,348 786,375
2014 475,000 313,444 788,444

2015-2019 2,674,998 1,264,532 3,939,530

2020-2024 3,294,996 665,060 3,960,056

2025-2026 1,115,000 65,544 1,180.544

$ 9,516,800 $ 3,639,616 $ 13,156,416

The City has entered into an intergovernmental contract with Cobb County, Georgia for the acquisition of
property totaling $173,412. The City is currently making quarterly payments of $8,670 over a five year
period to the County. Interest is due only if the remittance is late. Title to the property will be transferred to
the City in fiscal year 2012 when the amounts have been paid in full.

Business-type Activities:

On April 6, 2004, the City issued $1,775,000 in Series 2004A, 2004B, and 2004C Water and Sewer Revenue
Refunding Bonds, which are secured by the revenues of the water and sewer system, for the purpose of
refunding the Series 1993 Revenue Bonds in order to achieve interest cost savings. The original bonds were
issued for the purpose of financing the costs of making additions, extensions and improvements to the City's
water and sewer system. As a result of the refunding, the City decreased its total debt service requirements by
$116,581 which resulted in an economic gain (difference between the present value of the debt service
payments on the old and new debt) of $86,438.

Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2010 $ 330,000 $ 9,404 $ 339,404

Additionally, the City’s enterprise funds are obligated under capital leases covering vehicles and equipment.
The gross amounts of these assets under capital lease for the Water and Sewer and Sanitation funds are
$246,863 and $420,824, respectively. Accumulated depreciation related to these assets is $41,909 and
$362,264, respectively. The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments together with the
present value of the net minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2009:

Sanitation Fund
Capital leases covering vehicles:

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2010 $ 62,513 $ 3,604 $ 66,117
2011 32,323 734 33,057

$ 94,836 $ 4338 § 99,174
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(8) LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Water and Sewer Fund
Capital leases covering vehicles and equipment:

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest __ Total
2010 $ 50,852 $ 6,137 $ 56,989
2011 50,965 4,208 55,173
2012 52,467 2,225 54,692
2013 21,508 294 21,802
2014 2,788 29 2.817

$178,580 § 12,893 $191.473

Additionally, the City is obligated under loans payable to the Georgia Environmental Facilities Authority.
The original principal amount of the loans totaled $1,173,725, the proceeds of which were used to fund water
and sewer facilities improvements and additions. The notes are payable over 18-20 years and bear interest at
3.8% - 4.1%. The following is a schedule of future payments on these loans at June 30, 2009.

Water and Sewer Fund

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2010 $ 50,084 $ 37328 $ 87,412
2011 52,110 35,301 87,411
2012 54,206 33,206 87,412
2013 56,386 31,027 87,413
2014 58,654 28,759 87,413
2015-2019 330,649 106,455 437,104
2020-2024 243,567 45,496 289,063
2025-2027 124.596 7.253 131,849

$ 970,252 $32485 § 1,295,077

During fiscal year 2001, the City entered into an agreement with the County under which the County
advanced $146,200 in tap fees for 34 lots. The City collects tap fees from the homeowners when the sewer
system is tapped onto in either a lump sum or in monthly installments over 10 years. The fees collected are
then remitted to the County. At June 30, 2009, amounts due to the City from homeowners who had elected to
tap onto the system totaled $20,740. $3,780 of this total will be repaid during fiscal year 2009.

The portion due to the County in fiscal year 2010 totaled $3,780 at June 30, 2009. The remaining $86,425
will be payable in fiscal year 2010 and thereafter as additional homeowners choose to tap onto the system.

(99 FUND BALANCE RESERVES AND DESIGNATIONS

The City maintains reserves and designated fund balance in various funds for specific purposes. The nature
and purpose of these reserves is explained below.

Fund Balance Reserved for: General Fund
Completion of projects $ 3,994,900
Prepaid insurance for 2009 coverage 118,492
Inventories 15,308
Encumbrances 9,367

$ 4,138,067
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(12)

TRANSFERS
Interfund transfers for the current year were as follows:
Transfer Out From
Transfer In To General Fund  SPLOST Total
General Fund $ -- $§ 118,150 $ 118,150
Capital Projects Fund 812,512 - 812,512

TOTAL § 812512 $§ 118,150 $ 930,662

Transfers and payments within the reporting entity are substantially for the purposes of funding capital
projects, asset acquisitions, and operating expenses.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
A. Litigation

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently
determinable, it is the opinion of the government’s counsel that resolution of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the government.

B. Commitments

The City has a contract with the Cobb County Water System to purchase substantially all of the City's water
and to provide sewer service. Under the contract, the City pays a rate based on water usage. The rates
charged are subject to minimum annual contract payments. Expense for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009
was $1,722,789.

The City also has active construction projects at June 30, 2009.
RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The City participates in the Georgia Interlocal Risk Management
Agency (GIRMA) whereby the risk is pooled with other entities. Participation in this pool allows the City to
share liability, crime, motor vehicle and property damage risks. The retention of the pool is $100,000 for
property and $300,000 for liability. Coverage is subject to a per occurrence deductible of $1,000.

Chapter 85 of Title 36 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated authorizes Georgia municipalities to form
interlocal risk management agencies. GIRMA is a municipal interlocal risk management agency to function
as an unincorporated nonprofit instrumentality of its member municipalities - GIRMA establishes and
administers one or more group self insurance funds and a risk management service to prevent or lessen the
incidence and severity of casualty and property losses occurring in the operation of municipal government.
GIRMA is to defend and protect in accordance with the member government contract and related coverage
descriptions any member of GIRMA against liability or loss.

36



CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(12) RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The City must participate at all times in at least one fund which is established by GIRMA. Other
responsibilities of the City are as follows:

* To pay all contributions, assessments or other sums due to GIRMA at such times and in such
amounts as shall be established by GIRMA.

» To select a person to serve as a Member representative.

» To allow GIRMA and its agents reasonable access to all facilities of the City and all records,
including but not limited to financial records, which relate to the purposes of GIRMA.

» To allow attorneys appointed by GIRMA to represent the City in investigation, settlement
discussions and all levels of litigation arising out of any claim made against the City within the
scope of loss protection furnished by the Fund or Funds established by GIRMA.

» To assist and cooperate in the defense and settlement of claims against the City.

* To furnish full cooperation to GIRMA’s attorneys, claims adjusters, Service Company, and any
agent, employee, officer or independent contractor of GIRMA relating to the purpose of GIRMA.

* To follow all loss reduction and prevention procedures established by GIRMA.
+» To furnish to GIRMA such budget, operating and underwriting information as may be requested.

+ To report as promptly as possible, and in accordance with any Coverage Descriptions issued, all
incidents which could result in GIRMA or any Fund established by GIRMA being required to pay
claim for loss or injuries to municipal property or injuries to persons or property when such loss or
injury is within the scope of the protection of a Fund or Funds in which the City participates.

The City is also exposed to risks of loss related to job-related illnesses or injuries to employees for which the
City has transferred its risk through participation in a public entity risk pool managed by the Georgia
Municipal Association Workers’ Compensation Self Insurance Fund whereby the risk is pooled with other
entities. The retention of the pool is $500,000. Yearly premiums are paid by the City which will pay for lost
time exceeding the first seven days the employee is absent, and the first seven days if the employee is absent
at least 21 days.

Pursuant to Title 34, Chapter 9, Article 5 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, the City became a
member of the Georgia Municipal Association Workers’ Compensation Self Insurance Fund. The liability of
the fund to the employees of any employer is specifically limited to such obligations as are imposed by
applicable state laws against the employer for workers’ compensation and/or employer’s liability.

The Fund is to defend, in the name of and on behalf of the members, any suits or other proceedings which
may at any time be instituted against them on account of injuries or death within the preview of the Workers’
Compensation Law of Georgia, or on the basis of employer’s liability, including suits or other proceedings
alleging such injuries and demanding compensation therefore, although such suits, other proceedings,
allegations or demands be wholly groundless, false or fraudulent.
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(13)

(14)

JOINT VENTURE

Under Georgia law, the City in conjunction with other cities and counties in the ten county Atlanta region is a
member of the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC). Membership in an RDC is required by the Official
Code of Georgia Annotated (OCGA) Section 50-8-34 which provides for the organizational structure of the
RDC in Georgia. The RDC Board membership includes the officials of political subdivisions and private
citizens representing districts with the Atlanta region. OCGA 50-8-39.1 provides that the member
governments are liable for any debts or obligations of an RDC. Separate financial statements may be
obtained from:
Atlanta Regional Commission
40 Courtland Street, NE
Atlanta, Georgia 30303

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The City contributes to the Georgia Municipal Employees Benefit System (“System”), an agent multiple-
employer public employee retirement system that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for
cities in the state of Georgia. The City joined the system during fiscal year 2003. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2009, the City’s payroll for employees covered by the System’s defined benefit plan was
$3,115,062. The Plan also provides death benefits for early retirees.

The benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by the System and the Adoption Agreement
executed by the City.

All full-time City employees are eligible to participate in the System upon completion of one year of service;
elected officials have no waiting period for eligibility. Benefits vest after completing seven years of service.
Employees who retire after age 65 with S years of service or after age 55 with 10 years of credited service are
entitled to a retirement benefit. The monthly benefit is determined using a split benefit formula,
incorporating the employees’ final average earnings, years of service and rate of 1.5%.

The City makes all contributions to the Plan. Employees are not required to make contributions to the Plan
Total pension contributions for the year ended June 30, 2009 was $193,179.

The net pension obligation was computed as part of an actuarial valuation performed as of March 1, 2008.
Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include (a) a rate of return on the investment of
present and future assets of 8.0% a year, and (b) projected salary increases of 5.5% a year.

Contributions are determined under the projected unit credit actuarial cost method and the asset valuation
method (sum of actuarial value at beginning of year and the cash flow during the year plus the assumed
investment return, adjusted by 10% of the amount that the value exceeds or is less than the market value at
end of year.) The actuarial value is adjusted, if necessary, to be within 20% of market value.

The period, and related method, for amortizing the initial unfunded actuarial accrued liability is 30 years from
2003 and current changes in the unfunded actuarial accrued liability over 15 years for actuarial gains and
losses, 20 years for plan provisions and 30 years for actuarial assumptions and cost methods as a level dollar
amount. These amortization periods, if applicable, are closed for this plan year.

Employer contributions represented 6.2% of current year covered payroll. The normal contribution
requirement was $202,133.
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15)

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM (Continued)

ANNUAL PENSION COST AND NET PENSION OBLIGATION (ASSET)

The City’s annual pension cost and net pension obligation (asset) for the current year were as follows:

Annual required contribution

Interest on net pension asset

Adjustment to annual required contribution
Annual pension cost

Contributions made

Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation
Net pension obligation, beginning of year
Net pension obligation, end of year

$ 202,133
406

(385)
202,154

(193.179)
8,975

5,073

$ 14,048

This amount is not considered material to Governmental Activities and has not been included in the

accompanying financial statements.

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Fiscal Annual Net
Year Required Percentage Pension
Ended Contribution Contributed Obligation
6/30/07 $ 145,960 96% $ 1,955
6/30/08 163,541 98% 5,073
6/30/09 202,133 96% 14,048
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of Accrued AAL Funded  Covered Percentage
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
3/1/06 $392,621 $ 645,127 $(252,506) 60.9% $2,450,904 10%
3/1/07 $547,083 4% 834,224 $(287,141) 65.6% $2,821,431 10%
3/1/08 $725,132 $1,184,206 $(459,074) 61.2% $3,115,062 15%

The Georgia Municipal Employees Benefit System issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to:

Georgia Municipal Association

Risk Management and Employee Benefit Service

201 Pryor Street, SW
Atlanta, Georgia 30303

POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

In addition to providing pension benefits, the City provides, through passage of local ordinance, certain health
care insurance benefits for retired employees. City employees who retire with a minimum of ten years'
service and whose age and years of service total at least 80 are eligible for these benefits. The cost of retiree
health care insurance benefits is recognized as an expenditure as premiums are paid. As of June 30, 2009,

there were two retirees eligible for the benefits.
$12,960.
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CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

3/1/06
3/1/07

3/1/08

Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded UAALasa
Value of Accrued AAL Funded  Covered Percentage
Assets Liability (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
(a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
$392,621 $§ 645,127 $(252,506) 60.9% $2,450,904 10%
$547,083 $ 834,224 $ 287,141 65.6% $2,821,431 10%
$725,132 $1,184,206 $(459,074) 61.2% $3,115,062 15%
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Variance with Final

Original Final Budget-
Budget Budget Actual Positive (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes $ 4,919,316 $ 5,157,403 $ 5,024,064 $ (133,339)
Licenses and permits 496,500 378,575 406,026 27,451
Fines and forfeitures 625,000 478,237 522,914 44,677
Street Lights 258,000 250,000 289,420 39,420
Intergovernmental 145,000 183,265 144,406 (38,859)
Investment earnings 100,250 114,250 137,745 23,495
Other 397,000 253,137 232,677 (20,460)
Total revenues 6,941,066 6,814,867 6,757,252 (57,615)
Expenditures:
Current:
General administration 1,727,728 1,167,683 1,153,712 13,971
Health and welfare 33,500 33,700 15,110 18,590
Housing and development 1,302,203 830,766 788,566 42,200
Public safety 3,347,375 3,079,231 3,054,098 25,133
Public works 1,145,311 980,016 905,381 74,635
Culture and recreation 250,900 171,906 93,237 78,669
Debt service 969,061 1,000,363 1,000,394 (€20)
Total expenditures 8,776,078 7,263,665 7,010,498 253,167
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (1,835,012) (448,798) (253,246) 195,552
Other financing sources (uses):
Debt issued 401,838 61,420 61,420 -
Transfers in - 163,450 118,150 (45,300)
Proceeds from disposal of assets 6,250 217,866 151,865 (66,001)
Transfers out (5,927,826) (797,917) (812,511) (14,594)
Total other financing sources (uses) (5,519,738) (355,181) (481,076) (125,895)
Net change in fund balance $ (7,354,750) $ (803,979) (734,322) $ 69,657
Fund balance at beginning of year- GAAP basis 6,437,894
Fund balance at end of year- GAAP basis $ 5,703,572
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A. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

An operating budget is legally adopted each fiscal year for the General Fund. A project length budget
is adopted for the Capital Projects fund and SPLOST fund.

The budget is adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

The City generally follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

1.

A proposed operating budget including proposed expenditures and the means of financing
them is submitted to the City Council by the City Manager.

A public hearing on the budget is held, giving notice thereof at least fourteen days in advance
by publication in the official Powder Springs newspaper.

The budget is then revised and adopted or amended by the Council at the first regular meeting
following the hearing.

The budget so adopted may be revised during the year only by formal action of the Council in
a regular meeting and no increase shall be made therein without provision also being made for

financing the same.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for
all funds.

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended, by Council.

The level of control (the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations)
for each of the above adopted budgets is at the department level.

Budgeted amounts reflected in the accompanying budget and actual comparisons are as
originally adopted, or as amended, by the Council.
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Powder Springs's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the government's overall
financial health.
Contents Page
Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader

understand how the government's financial performance and

well-being have changed over time. 44-49

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the
government's most significant local revenue source, the property tax. 50-57

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the

affordability of the government's current levels of outstanding debt
and the government's ability to issue additional debt in the future. 58-61

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indications to

help the reader understand the environment within which the

government's financial activities take place. 62-63
Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help

the reader understand how the information in the government's

financial report relates to the services the government provides
and the activities it performs. 64-66

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual
financial reports for the relevant year.
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CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA
DIRECT AND UNDERLYING PROPERTY TAX RATES
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(rate per $1,000 of assessed taxable value)

1
Underlying Rates

City Cobb Total
Fiscal Direct Cobb County State of Underlying
Year Rate County Schools Georgia and Direct
2000 7.00 9.12 19.90 0.25 36.27
2001 7.00 8.99 19.90 0.25 36.14
2002 7.00 9.87 18.90 0.25 37.02
2003 7.00 9.72 19.90 0.25 36.87
2004 7.00 9.72 19.90 0.25 36.87
2005 8.50 9.72 19.90 0.25 38.37
2006 8.50 9.72 19.90 0.25 38.37
2007 8.50 9.72 19.90 0.25 38.37
2008 8.50 9.72 19.90 0.25 38.37
2009 8.50 9.60 18.90 0.25 37.25

Note: 1 - Underlying rates are those of Cobb County, Cobb County School System and the
State of Georgia that apply to property owners within the City of Powder Springs.

Source: Cobb County Tax Commissioner's Office
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CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA
WATER AND SEWER RATES
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Water
Inside City Limits Outside City Limits
Fiscal (1) (2) (1) (2)
Year Base Rate Usage Rate Base Rate Usage Rate
*Gallons *Gallons
2000 5.14 2.57 10.14 2.57
2001 5.14 2.57 10.14 2.57
2002 5.14 2.57 10.14 2.57
2003 5.26 2.63 10.26 2.63
2004 6.76 2.66 11.83 2.66
2005 6.93 3.47 12.12 3.54
2006 7.02 3.51 12.27 3.58
2007 7.09 3.58 12.34 3.65
2008 8.20 2001-6000 410 13.38 2001-6000 417
6001-15000 5.13 © 6001-15000 5.21
15001-999999 6.15 15001-999999 6.26
2009 8.20 2001-6000 410 12.86 2001-6000 4.16
6001-15000 5.13 6001-15000 5.20
15001-999999 6.15 15001-999999 6.26
Sewer
Inside City Limits Outside City Limits
(1) (2) (1) (2)

Base Rate Usage Rate Base Rate Usage Rate
2000 5.88 2.94 6.60 3.30
2001 5.88 2.94 6.60 3.30
2002 6.76 3.38 7.60 3.80
2003 6.76 3.38 7.60 3.80
2004 9.12 3.45 9.98 3.88
2005 9.48 475 10.38 5.20
2006 9.67 4.84 10.58 5.30
2007 9.80 4.97 10.71 5.43
2008 10.84 5.42 11.80 5.90
2008 10.84 5.42 11.70 5.85

Notes: (1) 0- 2,000 gallons
(2) Rate per each additional 1,000 gallons
* Graduated rate schedule implemented in 2008

Source: City Utility Billing Office
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CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
As of June 30, 2009 (Unaudited)

Governmental Unit

Debt repaid with property taxes
Cobb County General Obligation Debt
(including Tax Anticipation Notes)
Other debt
Cobb County Recreation Authority
Cobb County Solid Waste Disposal
Cobb County Administration Building
Cobb-Marietta Coliseum and Exhibit Hall
Subtotal, overlapping debt
City direct debt

Total direct and overlapping debt

Debt
Outstanding

$153,815,000

3,040,000
13,910,000
2,795,000
53,235,000

Estimated
_Share of
Estimated Direct and
Percentage Overlapping
Applicable’ Debt
1.40% $ 2,153,410
1.40% 42 560
1.40% 194,740
1.40% 39,130
1.40% 745,290
3,175,130
9,603,506
$ 12,778,636

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the Cobb County Board of Equalization and
Assessment. Debt outstanding data provided by each governmental unit.

Notes: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the City. This schedule
estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of the City.
This process recognizes that, when considering the City's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the
residents and businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident-and therefore
responsible for repaying the debt-of each overlapping government.

"The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. Applicable percentages were
estimated by determining the portion of the county's taxable assessed value that is within the government's boundaries and dividing

it by the county's total taxable assessed value.
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CITY OF POWDER SPRINGS, GEORGIA

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

June 30, 2009

Per
Personal Capita Median Unemployment
Year Population Income Income Age Rate
1950 619 $ - $ - N/A N/A
1960 746 1,802,336 2,416 N/A N/A
1970 2,559 7,331,535 2,865 25.4 N/A
1980 3,381 23,142,945 6,845 29.5 N/A
1990 6,893 104,401,378 15,146 29.5 1.9%
2000 12,481 302,040,200 24,200 32.0 2.9%

" Source: U. S. Census Bureau
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)\% MOORE & CUBBEDGE w.r

% Certified Public Accountants & Advisors

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Patricia C. Vaughn, Mayor
Members of the City Council
City of Powder Springs, Georgia

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, and each major fund of the City of Powder Springs, Georgia as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the City of Powder Springs, Georgia’s basic
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 28, 2009. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Powder Springs, Georgia’s
internal control over financial reporting as a basis of designing our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Powder Springs, Georgia’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City of Powder Springs, Georgia’s internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination
of control deficiencies, that adversely affects City of Powder Springs, Georgia’s ability to
initiate, authorize, record, process or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a
misstatement of City of Powder Springs, Georgia’s financial statements that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by City of Powder Springs, Georgia’s internal
control.

Michael R.Crace  Jean K.Hawkins  Richard H.Lewis  Tammy A.Galvis  Donald L. McGrath Jr. Retired: C.Frank Moore Edwin W.Cubbedge iii
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We consider the deficiency described below to be a significant deficiency in internal control over
financial reporting:

Condition: Controls over the financial reporting process did not prevent
misstatements from occurring in the fund financial statements.

Management Response: Staff changes and position vacancies contributed to the
City’s deficiencies in controls over the financial reporting process. Procedures are
being implemented to provide for adequate segregation of duties and daily checks
and balances of transactions.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements
will not be prevented or detected by City of Powder Springs, Georgia’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies
in the internal control that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not
necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies that are also considered to be material
weaknesses. However, we consider the significant deficiency described above to be a material
weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Powder Springs, Georgia’s
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The City of Powder Springs, Georgia’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described
above. We did not audit the City of Powder Springs Georgia’s response and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on it.

This report is intended for the information of the finance committee, management and federal

awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Moore & Cubbedge, LLP

December 28, 2009
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